# New Mexico Junior College



1

# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

Message from President	3
Clery Act History	4,5
About New Mexico Junior College	5
Campus Security and Safety Information	6
Emergency Operation Plan	6
Crime and Fire Log	6
Reporting Crimes or Emergencies	6,7
Timely Warning Policy	7
Education and Prevention Programs	7
Campus Sex Crimes Prevention Act Information	7,8
Sexual Misconduct	
Reporting Sexual Misconduct	8
Filing a Complaint (Sexual Misconduct)	9
Personal Responsibility	9
Building Access	9
Hate/Bias Crimes	9
Retaliation	
Security Escort	10
Drugs, Alcohol, Weapons	10
On Campus Housing	11
Annual Fire Safety Report	11
Missing Student Notification Procedure	11
Emergency Response and Evacuation Plan	12
Safety Technology	12
Crime Stats	13,23
Crime Definitions	23
VAWA Definitions	24 25

A message from New Mexico Junior College President,

Dr. Kelvin Sharp.



New Mexico Junior College is committed to the success of our students. We believe in creating a safe and welcoming environment.

We are committed to serving everyone with dignity and in a respectful manner with an emphasis on a quality and affordable education.

We constantly strive to improve our procedures for responding to situations that could possibly threaten the safety or security of the New Mexico Junior College.

New Mexico Junior College has an excellent history of safety and we will continue to work towards keeping that tradition alive. My sincere thanks to you for being a part of New Mexico Junior College.

Sincerely

Dr. Kelvin Sharp

Kelin W. Sharp

President New Mexico Junior College

# Where did the Jeanne Clery Act come from?

Connie and Howard Clery were returning home from a trip on April 5, 1986 and were surprised to see a police car waiting in their driveway. Their thoughts immediately raced to a tripped alarm or Howard's elderly mother. Never did they think that something could have happened to Jeanne because, as Connie describes years later, "she was in the safest place she could have been."

In the early morning hours, Jeanne was raped and murdered in her residence hall by another student whom she did not know. She was 19 years old.

#### "I knew I had to do something"

In the very beginning, right after Jeannie's death, [My friend] and I were talking the week after the funeral. She asked, "Connie what are you going to do? I said, "I don't know, I don't know. But I know that what happened to Jeanne could have happened to anyone, because she was in the safest place she possibly could have been... That's when I decided I was going to try to make college campuses safer... That was the beginning.

Connie and Howard began to press for legislation that would make colleges and universities safer. They began at a state level, passing the first campus safety law in Pennsylvania in 1988. Their advocacy took them across the country, working hand-in-hand with victims and their families. In 1990, their work culminated in the passing of the federal Crime Awareness and Campus Security Act, today known as the Jeanne Clery Disclosure of Campus Security Policy and Campus Crime Statistics Act.

## Clery Act History (1990-2017)

1990: Required institutions of higher education participating in federal student aid programs to disclose 3 year's worth of campus crime statistics and security policies.

1991: Changed initial collection of statistics from September 1, 1991 to August 1, 1991 and changed crime statistics reporting period from school year to calendar year.

1992: Broadened sexual assault reporting and added required sexual assault policy statements. Specified effective dates of initial collection and dissemination requirements.

1998: Expanded crime categories that must be reported, added geographical breakdown, expanded definition of campus, expanded reporting of hate-crimes, added public crime log, and named law after Jeanne Clery.

2000: Added notice of where public sex offender registration information about offenders on-campus may be obtained.

2008: Required statement of emergency response and evacuation procedures in annual security report and emergency notifications on campus, expanded hate crime statistics reported and statement of policy on law enforcement authority of campus personnel, established safeguards for "whistleblowers."

2013: Officials handling disciplinary proceedings would be required to receive annual training, and campus crime reports would be expanded to include domestic/dating violence and stalking. Addition of ongoing prevention programs for domestic/dating violence and stalking. Defined policies in place for handling of domestic/dating violence and stalking.

# Starting from scratch:

While the Clerys were working on Capitol Hill, they also were spearheading the beginnings of a nonprofit organization, one which would act as a watchdog, ensuring that colleges and universities would adhere to the law accurately.

The Clery's home served as the first office of Security On Campus, where an assistant worked off of Connie's high school typewriter, before they moved to a more permanent office space. At Security On Campus, the staff worked side by side with students, families, and university administrators to file Clery Act complaints against colleges and universities.

## **NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE**

New Mexico Junior College is the first community college to open in the State of New Mexico. It is located in extreme south east New Mexico and was founded in 1965. NMJC has a combined enrollment of over 3,000 students and employs more than 350 full and part time staff and faculty members.

#### **CAMPUS SAFETY AND SECURITY INFORMATION**

New Mexico Junior College is committed to maintaining a safe and professional environment conducive to educational pursuits throughout its campus. This publication is reflective of our commitment to safety and our compliance with the Student Right to Know and The Crime Awareness and Campus Security Act of 1990, renamed the Jeanne Clery Disclosure of Campus Security Police and Campus Crime Statistics Act of 1998.

It is the interest of your safety that you become familiar with this material. For your convenience the last three years of Clery Crime statistics are available online at <a href="http://www.nmjc.edu/studentservices/security/crimestats.asp">http://www.nmjc.edu/studentservices/security/crimestats.asp</a>.

#### **EMERGENCY OPERATION PLAN**

NMJC has adopted a comprehensive Emergency Operation Plan. Part of the plan includes an extensive Emergency Notification System. This system includes emergency notification speakers that are located in classrooms, hallways and exteriors of campus buildings. NMJC also uses the Regroup Emergency notification system which allows the college to immediately notify students and employees via text messaging, email as well as other social media methods of emergency notification.

These systems will be used to, immediately and without delay, notify the campus community upon the confirmation of a significant emergency or dangerous situation involving an immediate threat to the health or safety of students or staff on campus, as defined by the Clery Act.

Warnings may only be withheld if they would compromise efforts to contain the emergency.

#### **CAMPUS SECURITY & SAFETY**

New Mexico Junior College employs staff that are armed Campus Security & Safety Officers. The NMJC Campus Security & Safety employees work closely with local law enforcement. The campus of NMJC is located in Lea County, therefore, emergency law enforcement response comes from the Lea County Sheriff's Department.

NMJC Campus Security & Safety employees will assist you when possible, this may include the investigation of crimes (once it has been determined an actual crime has been committed, Campus Security & Safety will give the option of making a call on behalf of the victim to the Lea County Sheriff's Department for an official police report). NMJC Campus Security & Safety employees also work traffic collisions, escorts to vehicles and provides assistance when students or employees are having issues with their vehicle (flat tires, dead battery, keys locked inside vehicle or any similar incident).

All NMJC Employees have been trained and identified as Campus Security Authorities. They are trained in what do to help persons who report crimes or request assistance. In any case, all these persons will assist you by contacting NMJC Campus Security & Safety Officers.

# **CRIME AND FIRE LOG**

Institutions with a police or security department are required to maintain a public crime log documenting the "nature, date, time, and general location or each crime" and it disposition if known. Institutions that have campus housing are also required to maintain a campus fire log. New Mexico Junior College maintains a campus Crime and Fire Log as mandated by the Clery Act. For access to either log contact the on duty Campus Security & Safety Officers by calling 575-399-2033.

# **COLLEGE POLICIES FOR REPORTING CRIME OR EMERGENCIES**

Witnesses and or victims of criminal actions, suspicious incidents, illnesses and other emergencies are strongly encouraged to report such events to NMJC Campus Security & Safety Officers. The college also strongly recommends notification of the Lea County Sheriff's Department. Any employee of the college could be notified and will provide direction in how to report to NMJC Campus Security & Safety

employees. The college will also assist in making appropriate referrals to medical and or social service agencies.

In life-threatening situations, please call 9-1-1 from any phone. If possible after 9-1-1 has been called contact NMJC Campus Security & Safety employees by dialing 575-399-2033. Classrooms have the Campus Security number on the whiteboard.

Under the direction of the Executive Director of Administrative Services / General Counsel the Director of Campus Security & Safety prepares the annual disclosure of the Campus Security Report. All data for the report is gathered from in-house resources as well as area law enforcement agencies.

## **TIMELY WARNING POLICY**

New Mexico Junior College maintains a Timely Warning Policy to notify the campus community of reported crimes including hate crimes that are considered by NMJC to be a threat to students and employees. Timely Warnings will be issued via a variety of media including but not limited to Regroup (text, email and Social Media), Emergency Speaker System and other means as appropriate.

## **EDUCATION AND PREVENTION PROGRAMS**

New Mexico Junior College provides a variety of crime prevention educational programs through the Campus Security & Safety Department.

## Some examples include:

- Explanation and discussion of crimes that may be committed on campus and ways to prevent them from happening to you
- Information about reporting procedures
- Discussion of self-protection issues (should I be here)
- Encouragement toward proper care in locking up valuables
- Advice for traveling on or around campus at night
- An extensive list of community referral services
- Numerous publications on drug/alcohol and sexual violence programs.

## CAMPUS SEX CRIMES PREVENTION ACT INFORMATION (New Mexico sex offender registry)

The Federal Campus Sex Crimes Prevention Act requires institutions of higher education to let the campus community know where to find information about registered sex offenders. The State of New Mexico is responsible for tracking convicted sex offenders within the state. Local Sheriff's Departments keep residency information and register sex offenders residing in their jurisdiction. This information may be located on the New Mexico Sex Offender Web page at:

http://sheriffalerts.com/cap\_office\_disclaimer.php?office=55290&fwd=aHR0cDovL2NvbW11bml0eW5vdGlmaWNhdGlvbi5jb20vY2FwX21haW4ucGhwP29mZmljZT01NTI5MA==.

For more information about sexual offender registration please refer to the following, <a href="http://www.nmjc.edu/studentservices/publications/studenthandbook.asp">http://www.nmjc.edu/studentservices/publications/studenthandbook.asp</a> on page 26.

#### **SEXUAL MISCONDUCT**

The college prohibits all forms of sexual misconduct by students and employees, whether perpetrated by a stranger or acquaintance, whether occurring on or off campus, and whether directed against a member of the college community or someone outside the community. Such behavior will result in discipline and may also be a criminal violation.

Prohibited conduct ranges from acts of non-consensual sexual intercourse and non-consensual sexual contact, to sexual misconduct, including but not limited to, harassment of a sexual nature, sexual exploitation, stalking, relationship violence, voyeurism, exposure, video or audio taping of sexual activity, and sexual activity resulting from emotional coercion. Other prohibited actions include verbal or physical sexual advances, including subtle pressure of sexual activity, touching, pinching, patting or brushing against, flirtations or verbal abuse of a sexual nature, graphic comments regarding physical or personality characteristics of a sexual nature, the display in the workplace of sexually suggestive objects or pictures and sexual oriented kidding, teasing and jokes.

The college may also discipline students and employees for inappropriate sexual behavior and forms of sexual misconduct that are not specifically listed here.

For additional information about the NMJC employee sexual harassment policy please refer to the following, <a href="http://www.nmjc.edu/facultystaff/employeehandbook.pdf">http://www.nmjc.edu/facultystaff/employeehandbook.pdf</a> Appendix A.

For additional information about the NMJC student Sexual Harassment policy refer to the following <a href="http://www.nmjc.edu/studentservices/publications/studenthandbook.asp">http://www.nmjc.edu/studentservices/publications/studenthandbook.asp</a> pages 45 and 46.

#### REPORTING SEXUAL MISCONDUCT

Any student or employee who believes that he/she is the object of sexual harassment or who has knowledge of any sexual harassment of any other student or employee should immediately report it to the Vice President for Student Services or the Executive Director of Administrative Services / General Counsel or his/her appointed designee. A prompt, confidential investigation will be conducted of any reported sexual harassment. Charges of sexual harassment should be made as soon as possible after the alleged occurrence. Appropriate disciplinary action, up to and including suspension or termination of the student or employee, will be taken against any student or employee that has found to be responsible for sexual harassment or from knowingly permitting a sexually hostile environment to exist.

Confidentiality will be maintained within the limits of an investigation, and no reprisals or retaliation will be allowed to occur as a result of good faith reporting of charges. New Mexico Junior College has two Title VII and two Title IX certified investigators. They are as follows,

Cathy Mitchell / Vice President of Student Services 575-492-2761 <a href="mailto:cmitchell@nmjc.edu">cmitchell@nmjc.edu</a>
Scotty Holloman / Executive Director of Administrative Services 575-492-2791 <a href="mailto:sholloman@nmjc.edu">sholloman@nmjc.edu</a>

#### **FILING A COMPLAINT**

A victim of a sexual misconduct may file a complaint with a NMJC Campus Security & Safety Officer or any Campus Security Authority who will assist the victim with the filing of charges. Any student or employee who becomes aware of an incident of sexual misconduct should make contact with a NMJC Campus Security & Safety Officers or any Campus Security Authority. The college reserves the right to bring charges in the absence of a complaint from a victim.

#### PERSONAL RESPONSIBILITY

Crime prevention starts with the individual. New Mexico Junior College strives to make every effort to ensure our campus is well lighted and maintained. New Mexico Junior College Campus Security & Safety Officers make every effort to ensure the campus is well patrolled, but crimes still can occur. Keep your valuables locked up including your vehicle doors and housing doors. Do not leave a purse or valuables in your vehicle that can be seen from the outside. Call Campus Security & Safety Officers for Safety Escorts on the campus.

For additional information in this area please refer to the following, <a href="http://www.nmjc.edu/studentservices/publications/studenthandbook.asp">http://www.nmjc.edu/studentservices/publications/studenthandbook.asp</a> pages 9 and 10 and 44.

#### **BUILDING ACCESS**

New Mexico Junior College offers day and evening classes in a variety of areas. During the times when there are no classes or other college business the buildings are closed. Students are not permitted to be inside a building when it is closed.

Keys to access locked buildings are restricted and can only be issued through specific Department Secretary and after approval from a Vice President and certain keys require approval from the President of the College. Employees who have issued keys from the college are not permitted to loan them to other employees for their use.

## **HATE CRIMES/BIAS CRIMES**

A Hate Crime is defined as: an offense against persons or property motivated by prejudice, hate or bias against a victim based on race, gender, gender identify, religion, sexual orientation, ethnicity, national origin, or disability.

New Mexico Junior College regularly tracks and reports as hate crimes any occurrence of criminal homicide, sex offenses, robbery, aggravated assault, burglary, motor vehicle theft, arson, and any other crime involving bodily injury reported to NMJC Campus Security & Safety Officers when the crime manifests that the victim was intentionally selected because of the perpetrator's bias. Hate crime reporting has now been expanded to include the crimes of larceny, theft, simple assault, intimidation and vandalism.

#### **RETALIATION**

Students and employees are prohibited from retaliation, intimidation, threats, coercion or other discrimination against any individual for exercising that individual's rights or responsibilities under this policy. Any such acts or discrimination should be reported to any of the following, or to any employee of the college:

Scotty Holloman, General Counsel 575-492-2791 <a href="mailto:sholloman@nmjc.edu">sholloman@nmjc.edu</a>

Dennis Kelley Director of Campus Security & Safety 575-492-2530 <u>dkelley@nmjc.edu</u>

NMJC Campus Security & Safety 575-399-2033 security@nmjc.edu

#### **SECURITY ESCORT**

As a courtesy service, NMJC Campus Security & Safety employees, will escort any student, staff member, faculty or visitors to the campus to any location on the campus. NMJC Campus Security & Safety Officers are on the campus 24 hours a day and 365 days a year. They can always be reached by calling 575-399-2033.

## **DRUGS, ALCOHOL AND WEAPONS**

In compliance with the Drug Free Schools and Communities Act Amendment of 1989, Drug Free Workplace Act of 1988, NMJC Employee Manual Policy #231, and the NMJC Student Handbook the college prohibits the unlawful manufacture, distribution, possession, and or use of a controlled substance or alcohol, as well as prohibited weapons in the workplace, learning environment, and any facility or vehicle owned or controlled by the college. The President of the college is the only person who has ability to authorize a person to carry a firearm on the campus of NMJC. This policy does not prohibit a commissioned law enforcement officer from carrying a firearm when on the campus property. NMJC also has a comprehensive list of community resources that available to assist with a drug or alcohol issue.

For additional information refer to the NMJC Student Handbook which can be accessed at the following <a href="http://www.nmjc.edu/studentservices/publications/studenthandbook.asp">http://www.nmjc.edu/studentservices/publications/studenthandbook.asp</a> on pages 51 through 62.

For information about Drug and Alcohol Addiction Sources can accessed at the following <a href="http://www.nmjc.edu/studentservices/publications/studenthandbook.asp">http://www.nmjc.edu/studentservices/publications/studenthandbook.asp</a> pages 63 through 65.

For additional information about firearm possession on the campus please refer to the following, <a href="http://www.nmjc.edu/facultystaff/employeehandbook.pdf">http://www.nmjc.edu/facultystaff/employeehandbook.pdf</a> Policy #231.

For additional information about Drug-Free Workplace Policy and Program please refer to the following, <a href="http://www.nmjc.edu/facultystaff/employeehandbook.pdf">http://www.nmjc.edu/facultystaff/employeehandbook.pdf</a> Appendix B.

#### ON CAMPUS HOUSING

NMJC presently has three types of housing for students on our campus. One is the older style where two rooms share a bathroom and shower, one is the newer style that has 4 bedrooms a full kitchen and living room and two bathrooms and finally the third style is used to house Law Enforcement Cadets when they are in the academy. These are small double occupancy bed rooms with a male and female bathrooms located at the end of the dorm room building.

All housing units have a wet water sprinkler system and fire alarms in each living quarters and bedrooms. NMJC has one fire drill each semester to make sure occupants are aware of the evacuation plans and locations to which they are to muster when an alarm sounds. Occupants are not permitted to use tobacco, including e-cigarettes, in any campus building including campus housing.

NMJC campus housing conducts Health and Safety Checks at least once a month in every campus housing unit to verify that the smoke detectors have not been tampered with or there are no fire hazards or safety hazards present in the housing units.

For additional information concerning housing regulations please refer to the following, http://www.nmjc.edu/studentservices/publications/studenthandbook.asp pages 39 through 41.

#### **ANNUAL FIRE SAFETY REPORT**

Due to NMJC having campus housing units they are required to distribute an annual fire safety report and maintain a fire log. To view the fire log, contact the NMJC Campus Security & Safety employee on duty at 575-399-2033.

## MISSING STUDENT NOTIFICATION PROCEDURE

NMJC respects and promotes its students' independence and self-sufficiency. At the same time, NMJC seeks to ensure the safety and security of all persons on its campus. Any person may report any NMJC student as missing. Concerned persons should contact NMJC Campus Security & Safety Officers at 575-399-2033. It is not necessary to wait twenty-four (24) hours before making a report to Campus Security & Safety Officers. A report should be made if a students' whereabouts are unknown and unexplained that would be regarded as highly unusual or suspicious by person familiar with the student's life, habits, routines or plans. If a report to Campus Security & Safety Officers is not possible for some reason, you are encouraged to make a report directly to local law enforcement personnel.

Lea County Sheriff's Department 575-396-3611 Hobbs Police Department 575-397-9265

Emergency Number 9-1-1

The entire missing student policy can be reached at the following <a href="http://www.nmjc.edu/studentservices/publications/studenthandbook.asp">http://www.nmjc.edu/studentservices/publications/studenthandbook.asp</a> on page 8 and 9.

## **EMERGENCY RESPONSE AND EVACUATION PLAN**

NMJC has procedures to test the emergency response and evacuation procedures on at least an annual basis, including tests that may be announced or unannounced.

NMJC Campus Security & Safety Officers meet with all employees twice per year and conduct mandatory training in emergency response/evacuation and active shooter training. Each building on the campus has assembly areas designated and are covered by signage. These designated assembly areas are designed for mandatory evacuation in place due to severe weather or other natural disaster. Code Black (active shooter drills) are also conducted and employees are trained to Run, Hide, Fight in that order.

The Regroup emergency mass notification system and the Emergency Notification System are tested regularly to ensure that the system is operating properly. NMJC maintains AED's in campus buildings. These are tested monthly by an employee of the Campus Security & Safety Department and deficiencies are quickly corrected when found. We also have approximately 100 employees that are trained on the use of AED's and on CPR.

New Mexico Junior College Campus Security & Safety Department maintains a database records of all tests and drills that are conducted. The building evacuation plan can be reached at the following location,

http://www.nmjc.edu/studentservices/publications/studenthandbook.asp on page #46 and 47.

## **SAFETY TECHNOLOGY**

In an effort to maintain a safe and positive environment for students, employees and visitors, the NMJC Campus maintains in excess of 300 IP and Analog cameras throughout the campus. These cameras record activity and maintain the activity for approximately 90 days or indefinite if the recording is copied to a CD or flash drive.

The cameras can be viewed from different locations throughout the campus on televisions that are installed in Campus Security & Safety Department offices. NMJC Campus Security & Safety Officers are also able to closely monitor the parking lots and hallways of all campus housing. Campus Security & Safety Officers also have access to a hand held radar for traffic enforcement on the campus. They also have the ability to issue citations to students, employees or visitors for violations of parking laws. Speed limit signs are posted throughout the campus in addition to a variety of speed bumps which are used to limit the speed of drivers. NMJC also has a variety or crosswalks on the campus for pedestrian use.

For additional information about campus traffic and parking please refer to the following, <a href="http://www.nmjc.edu/studentservices/publications/studenthandbook.asp">http://www.nmjc.edu/studentservices/publications/studenthandbook.asp</a> page 43.

# **NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE**

# **2017—2019 CRIME STATS**

Criminal Offenses (On Campus)	2017	2018	2019
1. Murder/Non-negligent manslaughter	0	0	0
2. Negligent manslaughter	0	0	0
3. Rape	1	1	0
4. Fondling	0	0	1
5. Incest	0	0	0
6. Statutory rape	0	0	0
7. Robbery	0	0	0
8. Aggravated assault	0	0	2
9. Burglary	0	0	0
10. Motor Vehicle Theft	0	0	1
11. Arson	0	0	0
Criminal Offenses (On Campus Student Housing)	2017	2018	2019
1. Murder/Non-negligent manslaughter	0	0	0
2. Negligent manslaughter	0	0	0
3. Rape	1	1	0
4. Fondling	0	0	1
5. Incest	0	0	0
6. Statutory rape	0	0	0
7. Robbery	0	0	0
8. Aggravated assault	0	0	0
9. Burglary	0	0	0
10. Motor Vehicle Theft	0	0	0
11. Arson	0	0	0
Criminal Offenses (Non Campus)	2017	2018	2019
1. Murder/Non-negligent manslaughter	0	0	0
2. Negligent manslaughter	0	0	0
3. Rape	0	0	0
4. Fondling	0	0	0
5. Incest	0	0	0
6. Statutory rape	0	0	0
7. Robbery	0	0	0
8. Aggravated assault	0	0	0
9. Burglary	0	0	0

10	. Motor Vehicle Theft	0	0	0
11	. Arson	0	0	0
Crimin	al Offenses (Public Property)	2017	2018	2019
1.	Murder/Non-negligent manslaughter	0	0	0
2.	Negligent manslaughter	0	0	0
3.	Rape	0	0	0
4.	Fondling	0	0	0
5.	Incest	0	0	0
6.	Statutory rape	0	0	0
7.	Robbery	0	0	0
8.	Aggravated assault	0	0	0
9.	Burglary	0	0	0
10	. Motor Vehicle Theft	0	0	0
11	. Arson	0	0	0

# Hate Crimes (On Campus)

	2019 Total	Race	Religion C	Sexual Orientatio	Gender n	Gender Identity	Disability	Ethnicity	National Origin
Murder/Non	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Negligent Manslaughter									
Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Fondling	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Statutory rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Robbery	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Aggravated assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Burglary	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Motor Vehicle Theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Arson	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Simple Assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Larceny-theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Intimidation	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Destruction of property/									
Vandalism of property	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0

	2018 Total	Race	Religion	Sexual	Gender	Gender	Disability	Ethnicity	National
			C	Orientatio	า	Identity			Origin
Murder/Non	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Negligent Manslaughter									
Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Fondling	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Statutory rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Robbery	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Aggravated assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Burglary	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Motor Vehicle Theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Arson	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Simple Assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Larceny-theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Intimidation	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Destruction of property,	<i>'</i>								
Vandalism of property	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0

# Hate Crimes (On Campus)

	2017 Total	Race	Religion C	Sexual Orientation	Gender n	Gender Identity	Disability	Ethnicity	National Origin
Murder/Non	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Negligent Manslaughter									
Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Fondling	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Statutory rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Robbery	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Aggravated assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Burglary	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Motor Vehicle Theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Arson	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Simple Assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Larceny-theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Intimidation	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Destruction of property,	/								
Vandalism of property	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0

# **Hate Crimes (On Campus Student Housing Facilities)**

	2019 Total	Race	Religion C	Sexual Orientation	Gender 1	Gender Identity	Disability	Ethnicity	National Origin
Murder/Non	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Negligent Manslaughter									
Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Fondling	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Statutory rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Robbery	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Aggravated assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Burglary	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Motor Vehicle Theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Arson	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Simple Assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Larceny-theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Intimidation	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Destruction of property/	1								
Vandalism of property	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0

# **Hate Crimes (On Campus Student Housing Facilities)**

	2018 Total	Race	Religion C	Sexual Orientation	Gender n	Gender Identity	Disability	Ethnicity	National Origin
Murder/Non	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Negligent Manslaughter									
Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Fondling	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Statutory rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Robbery	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Aggravated assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Burglary	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Motor Vehicle Theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Arson	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Simple Assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Larceny-theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Intimidation	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Destruction of property,	/								
Vandalism of property	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0

# **Hate Crimes (On Campus Student Housing Facilities)**

	2017 Total	Race	Religion	Sexual	Gender	Gender	Disability	Ethnicity	National
			C	Orientatio	n	Identity			Origin
Murder/Non	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Negligent Manslaughter	-								
_			•						
Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Fondling	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Statutory rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Robbery	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Aggravated assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Burglary	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Motor Vehicle Theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Arson	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Simple Assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Larceny-theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Intimidation	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Destruction of property	/								
Vandalism of property	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0

# Hate Crimes (NonCampus)

	2019 Total	Race	Religion C	Sexual Orientation	Gender n	Gender Identity	Disability	Ethnicity	National Origin
Murder/Non	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Negligent Manslaughter									
Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Fondling	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Statutory rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Robbery	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Aggravated assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Burglary	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Motor Vehicle Theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Arson	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Simple Assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Larceny-theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Intimidation	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Destruction of property/	′								
Vandalism of property	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0

# **Hate Crimes (Non Campus)**

	2018 Total	Race	Religion (	Sexual Orientation	Gender 1	Gender Identity	Disability	Ethnicity	National Origin
Murder/Non	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Negligent Manslaughter									
Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Fondling	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Statutory rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Robbery	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Aggravated assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Burglary	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Motor Vehicle Theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Arson	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Simple Assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Larceny-theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Intimidation	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Destruction of property,	<i>'</i>								
Vandalism of property	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0

# **Hate Crimes (Non Campus)**

	2017 Total	Race	Religion C	Sexual Orientation	Gender n	Gender Identity	Disability	Ethnicity	National Origin
Murder/Non	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Negligent Manslaughter									
_				_		_			
Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Fondling	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Statutory rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Robbery	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Aggravated assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Burglary	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Motor Vehicle Theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Arson	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Simple Assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Larceny-theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Intimidation	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Destruction of property/	<i>'</i>								
Vandalism of property	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0

# **Hate Crimes (Public Property)**

	2019 Total	Race	Religion C	Sexual Orientation	Gender n	Gender Identity	Disability	Ethnicity	National Origin
Murder/Non	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Negligent Manslaughter									
D	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Fondling	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Statutory rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Robbery	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Aggravated assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Burglary	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Motor Vehicle Theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Arson	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Simple Assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Larceny-theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Intimidation	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Destruction of property,	1								
Vandalism of property	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0

# **Hate Crimes (Public Property)**

	2018 Total	Race	Religion C	Sexual Orientation	Gender n	Gender Identity	Disability	Ethnicity	National Origin
Murder/Non	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Negligent Manslaughter									
Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Fondling	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
· ·	0	0		-	-	-	·	-	Ū
Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Statutory rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Robbery	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Aggravated assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Burglary	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Motor Vehicle Theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Arson	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Simple Assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Larceny-theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Intimidation	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Destruction of property/	<i>'</i>								
Vandalism of property	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0

# **Hate Crimes (Public Property)**

	2017 Total	Race	Religion C	Sexual Orientation	Gender	Gender Identity	Disability	Ethnicity	National Origin
Murder/Non	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Negligent Manslau		Č	Č	· ·	· ·		Ū	Č	Ū
Rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Fondling	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Incest	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Statutory rape	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Robbery	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Aggravated assaul	t 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Burglary	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Motor Vehicle The	ft 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Arson	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Simple Assault	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Larceny-theft	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Intimidation	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Destruction of pro	perty/								
Vandalism of prop	erty 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
VAWA Offenses (On Campus)				20	17	201	8	2019	
1. Do	omestic Violence			C	)	0		0	
2. Da	ating Violence			C	)	0		0	
	alking			(		0		0	
VAWA Off	enses (On Campus	Student F	lousing)	20	17	201	8	2019	
1. Do	omestic Violence			(	)	0		0	
2. Da	ating Violence			(	)	0		0	
	alking			(	)	0		0	
VAWA Off	enses (Non Campu	s)		20	17	201	8	2019	
1. Do	omestic Violence			(	)	0		0	
2. Da	ating Violence			(	)	0		0	
3. St	alking			(	)	0		0	

VAWA Offenses (Public Property)		2017	2018	2019
<ol> <li>Domestic Violence</li> <li>Dating Violence</li> <li>Stalking</li> </ol>		0 0 0	0 0 0	0 0 0
Arrests (On Campus)	2017	2018	2019	
<ol> <li>Weapons carrying, possessing, etc.</li> <li>Drug abuse violations</li> <li>Liquor law violations</li> </ol>	0 1 6	0 1 0	0 0 2	
Arrests (On Campus Student Housing)	2017	2018	2019	
<ol> <li>Weapons carrying, possessing, etc.</li> <li>Drug abuse violations</li> <li>Liquor law violations</li> </ol>	0 1 6	0 1 0	0 0 2	
Arrests (Non Campus)	2017	2018	2019	
<ol> <li>Weapons carrying, possessing, etc.</li> <li>Drug abuse violations</li> <li>Liquor law violations</li> </ol>	0 0 0	0 0 0	0 0 0	
Arrests (Public Property)	2017	2018	2019	
<ol> <li>Weapons carrying, possessing, etc.</li> <li>Drug Abuse Violations</li> <li>Liquor law violations</li> </ol>	0 0 0	0 0 0	0 0 0	
Disciplinary Actions (On Campus)	2017	2018	2019	
<ol> <li>Weapons carrying, possessing etc.</li> <li>Drug abuse violations</li> <li>Liquor law violations</li> </ol>	0 11 46	1 1 46	0 4 68	

Discipl	inary Actions (Student Housing)	2017	2018	2019
1.	Weapons carrying, possessing etc.	0	0	0
2.	Drug abuse violations	11	1	4
3.	Liquor law violations	46	46	68
Discipl	inary Actions (Non Campus)	2017	2018	2019
1.	Weapons carrying, possessing etc.	0	0	0
2.	Drug abuse violations	0	0	0
3.	Liquor law violations	0	0	0
Discipl	inary Actions (Public Property)	2017	2018	2019
1.	Weapons carrying, possessing etc.	0	0	0
2.	Drug abuse violations	0	0	0
3.	Liquor law violations	0	0	0
Unfou	nded Crimes	2017	2018	2019
1.	Total unfounded crimes	0	0	0

# FIRES (On Campus Student Housing Facilities)

Street Address	2017	2018	2019
	Fires	Fires	Fires
On Campus	0	0	0
On Campus	0	0	0
On Campus	0	0	0
On Campus	0	0	0
On Campus	0	0	0
	On Campus On Campus On Campus On Campus	On Campus 0	On Campus On Compus On Campus

FIRES (Summary)	2016				2017			2018			
Facility Name	Fires	Injuries	Deaths	Fires	Injuries	Deaths	Fires	Injuries	Deaths		
Houston Hall	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		
Harold Runnels Hall	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		
Carroll Leavell Hall	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		
John Watson Hall	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		
Bob Moran	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		
Total	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		

## **CRIME DEFINITIONS**

<u>Aggravated Assault:</u> An attack by one person upon another, in which the offender uses or displays a weapon in a threatening manner or the victim suffers severe injury involving apparent broken bones, loss of teeth, possible internal injury, severe laceration, or loss of consciousness.

<u>Arson:</u> To unlawfully and intentionally damage, or attempt to damage, any real or personal property by fire of incendiary device.

Burglary: The unlawful entry into a building or other structure with the intent to commit a felony or a theft therein.

<u>Destruction of Property/Vandalism (Criminal Damage to Property):</u> to willfully or maliciously destroy, damage, deface or otherwise injure real or personal property without the consent of the owner or the person having custody or control of it.

<u>Drug Law Violation</u>: The violation of laws prohibiting the production, possession, distribution, and/or use of certain controlled substances and the equipment needed to produce or use them.

<u>Hate Crimes or Bias Crime:</u> An offense against persons or property motivated by prejudice, hate or bias against a victim based on race, gender, gender identity, religion, sexual orientation, ethnicity, national origin, or disability.

<u>Liquor-Law Violation</u>: The violation of laws prohibiting the manufacture, sale, purchase, transportation, possession, or use of alcoholic beverages. Does not include driving under the influence or drunkenness violations.

Motor-Vehicle Theft: The theft of a motor vehicle, including automobiles, trucks, motorcycles and mopeds.

Murder: The willful killing of one human being by another.

<u>Negligent Manslaughter:</u> The killing of another person through gross negligence.

<u>Robbery:</u> The taking, or attempted taking, of anything of value from one person by another, in which the offender uses force or the threat of violence.

<u>Simple Assault:</u> An unlawful physical attack by one person upon another where neither the offender displays a weapon, nor the victim suffers obvious severe or aggravated bodily injury involving apparent broken bones, loss of teeth, possible internal injury, severe laceration, or loss of consciousness.

<u>Theft:</u> The unlawful taking, carrying, leading, or riding away of property from the possession of constructive possession of another person.

<u>Weapon-Law Violation:</u> The violation of laws prohibiting the manufacture, sale, purchase, transportation, possession, concealment, or use of firearms, knives, explosives, or other deadly weapons and or dangerous instruments.

#### **DEFINITIONS AND TERMS:**

VAWA (Violence Against Women Act) Amendments to Clery

#### 1. Sexual Assault

a. An offense that meets the definition or rape, fondling, incest, or statutory rape as used in the FBI's Uniform Crime Reporting (UCR) program.

#### 2. Sex Offenses

- Any sexual act directed against another person, without the consent of the victim, including instances where the victim is incapable or giving consent. Reporting program.
  - i. **Rape.** The penetration, no matter how slight, of the vagina or anus with any body part or object, or oral penetration by a sex organ of any other person, without the consent of the victim.
  - ii. **Fondling**. The touching of the private body parts of another person for the purpose of sexual gratification, without the consent of the victim, including instances where the victim is incapable of giving consent because of his/her age or because of his/her temporary or permanent mental incapacity.
  - iii. **Incest.** Sexual intercourse between persons who are related to each other within the degrees wherein marriage is prohibited by law.
  - iv. Statutory Rape. Sexual intercourse with a person who is under the statutory age of consent.

#### 3. <u>Domestic Violence</u>

- a. A felony or misdemeanor crime of violence committed:
  - i. By a current or former spouse of intimate partner of the victim;
  - ii. By a person with who the victim shares a child in common;
  - iii. By a person who is cohabiting with, or has cohabitated with, the victim as a spouse or intimate partner;
  - iv. By a person similarly situated to a spouse of the victim under the domestic or family violence laws of the jurisdiction in which the crime of violence occurred;
  - v. By any other person against an adult or youth victim who is protected from the person's acts under the domestic or family violence laws of the jurisdiction in which the crime of violence occurred.

#### 4. Dating Violence

a. Violence committed by a person who is or has been in a social relationship of a romantic or intimate nature with the victim. The existence of such a relationship shall be determined based on the reporting party's statement and with consideration of the length of the relationship, the type of relationship, and the frequency of interaction between the persons involved in the relationship. For the purposes of this definition, dating violence includes, but is not limited to sexual or physical abuse or the threat of such abuse. Dating violence does not include acts covered under the definition of domestic violence. Any incident meeting this definition is considered a crime for the purposes of Clery Act reporting.

## 5. <u>Stalking</u>

- a. Engaging in a course of conduct directed at a specific person that would cause a reasonable person to:
  - i. Fear for the person's safety or the safety of others
  - ii. Suffer substantial emotional distress
- b. For the purposes of this definition:
  - i. Course of conduct—means two or more acts, including, but not limited to, acts in which the stalker directly, indirectly, or through third parties, by any action, method, device, or means, follows, monitors, observes, surveils, threatens, or communicates to or about a person, or interferes with a person's property.
  - ii. Reasonable person—means a reasonable person under similar circumstances and with similar identities to the victim
  - iii. Substantial emotional distress—means significant mental suffering or anguish that may, but does not necessarily, require medical or other professional treatment or counseling.
  - iv. Any incident meeting this definition is considered a crime for the purposes of Clery Act reporting.